QA-326 early 19th century
Harry Chambers House

101 South Libkerty Street

Centreville

Private

The large frame house at 101 South Liberty Street
in Centreville was constructed in several stages. The
original house, dating to circa 1820-40, was a side
passage plan with a single parlor to the north. This
small dwelling was later enlarged to the scuth and rear,
raised to 2 1/2 stories, and transformed into a
shingle style house by Harry Chambers. Evidence of
the earlier house may still be observed in the cellar
and in the first floor passage and north parlor.
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The Chambers House is located on the southwest
corner of Liberty Street and Water Street in
Centreville.

This house has a relatively complex history
of development. The original dwelling probably
dates to circa 1820-40 and consisted of a 1 1/2‘
or two story house, three bays wide and one room
deep with a side passage, single parlor plan.

In the post-Civil War period the house was extended
two bays to the south and raised to 2 1/2 stories.
One or more of the rear wings was presumably added
at the same time. Around the turn of the century,
the house was extenszvely renovated by Harry
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Chambers. At that tlme the front portlco was

~ v 1R B 3 ViR ¢ 7 J'

added and the exterlor was covered with wood
shingles. Architectural evidence survives from
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all three princ1pa1 periods of constructlon.

SRy S e -~

The front facade faces west to leerty Street.
The center bay projects forward about two feet
from the front facade, with the entrance door in
the center on the first floor, framed with sidelights.
and a transom, and a single 6/6 window centered on

the second floor. There are two large 2/2 windows

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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to left and right of the first floor door and two
relatively small 6/6 windows flanking the center bay on
the second floor. The building rests on a continuous
brick foundation and is covered withwood shingles.
The shallow pitched gable roof is covered with corrugated
metél cver an earlier covering of wood shingles.
A large tw6'5tory portico with square posts projects
over the three centér bays on this facade. A small,
three-part "Venetian" window is centered in the
tympanum of the portico. The eaves of the house
‘oversaiifand are boxed in: the portico has a box cornice
with crown mold. An open porch deck with a brick
foundation extends on either side of the portico.

on the north gable wall, facing Water Street,
there are singlé 6/6 windows in the east bay on the
first and second stories, two vents in the upper gabkle,
and a pair of three-light cellar windows in the
foundation. The eaves overséil and are boxed in;
the siding is wood shingle.

411 but the center bay of the rear facade has
been covered by additions. One two story frame wing
projects to the east from +he north end of the rear
facade, a second adjoins the south end. The gable
roof of the north wing is set on a right angle with

the main house, the gable roof of the south wing is
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parallel to the main house. Both wings have 2/2 windows
on the first floor, 6/6 windows on the second story,
shingle siding and boxed eaves.

A small one story addition covers the éast half of
the first story on the south gable wall; a porch protects
the first story of the west half. Openings in this
gable include a 2/2 window in the west bay of the first
story, two 6/6 windows on the second story, and two
vents in the upper gable. The eaves are boxed; the
siding is shingle.

The .interior plan of the original, antebellum house
consisted of a side stair passage to the south and a
single parlor to the north, When the house was
enlarged a new rooﬁ’was added to the south on each
floor, forming a center passage plan. The south portion
of the house is now utilized &s a separate apartment,
however, leaving the original floor plan nominally intact.
The étair rises against the south wall of the passage.

Tt is a Victorian stair with an Eastlake newel, turned
balusters and a simple rail. A plain band of trim
outlines the stair treads; the area below the carriage

is plastered. A door opens into a closet under the east
end of the stairs. The rear door of the passage now
opens into a rear addition. The architrave trim consists

of a beaded fascia with a cove/astragal backband.
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A transom above the door 1is fitted with vertical
diamond-section bars, similar to a first floor door at
the Brosius House two doors to the south on Liberty
street (QA-158). Beaded baseboards also survive in the
passage; the narrow flooring is not original. A wide
doorway in tbe north wall of the hall opens into the
parlor. Thié'door opening is framed with turn-of-the-
century Colonial Revival columns. The fireplace on

the north gable wall of the parlor is no longer functional.
Original trim in this room includes the beaded baseboard
aQé a twéﬁpiece chairrail with cove/astragal molding.
below the nosing. Later features of interest include a
simple Eastlake mantel and a handsome decorative tin
ceiling.

The second floor was evidently rebuilt when the
house was enlarged in the late 19th century. At present,
the stair rises to a2 hallway that runs across the east
wall to the north, with a bath‘at the north end of the
hall. There are two sleeping chambers to the west of
the hall with a small enclosed stair in the center
room rising to the attic. The south portion of the
second story is part ofsthe separate apartment and was
not examined.

The roof is constructed of machine-sawn common
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rafters joined at the ridge with a mitre joint and
nailed with machine nails. Many of the shingle nailers
are reused, beaded exterior siding boards painted green
or blue. These weatherboards were probably removed from
the south gable wall when the house was enlérged. The
outiine of ?he original roof is vigible on the north
chimney in the attic: corbeled drip courses are also
evident on both sides of the chimney. The roof of the
front portico is constructed with wire nails and covers
the earlier shingle roof, confirming.that the house was
-enlargeéjbefore circa 1890 and the portico was adced
sometime after that date. Also of interest is a section
of floral wallpaper on the south wall of the attic
stair, presumably dating to the late 19th century.
There iS'a.full cellar under the original portion
of the house, measuring approximately 18 feet wide and
23 feet long (inside dimensions). A large fireplace
opening on the north gable wall has been bricked up.
The ceiling joists are hewn and whip-sawn and covered
with whitewash. Early beaded siding secured with
machine nails survives on the east facade of the house,

visible from the cellér entrance.
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The frame house that stands on the southeast
corner of Liberty Street and Water Street appears
today to date to the early 20th century, but a
careful examination of the building reveals that it
was constructed in at least three distinct periods
dating back tothe first half of the 19th century.

The house was originally only 1 1/2 or possibly
2 stories high and was three bays wide and one room
deep, with a side passage, single parlor plan.

While architectural evidence suggests a date of
construction of circa 1820-40, documentary evidence
indicates there may have been a house on this site
by 1797. It is not clear at this point whether
the earliest part of the existing house dates to
this early period or if it is a later replacement.
Regardless, the early side passage plan house was
enlarged in the post-Civil War period two bays to

the south and was raised to 2 1/2 stories. At

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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least one of the rear additions was also presumably
made at this time, The house underwent yet a third
alteration around the turn of the century, probably
shortly after the house and lot was purchaéed by the
Chambers family in 1908. Despite the numerous changes
over the years, much of the fabric of the earliest

house survives intact.
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